Public Document Pack

Human Resources
Committee
Agenda
Date: Thursday, 26 April 2018
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: City Hall, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
Distribution:
Councillors: Kye Dudd, Paula O'Rourke, Richard Eddy, Gary Hopkins, Donald Alexander (subst for Cllr
Dudd), Mike Langley, Jo Sergeant and Jon Wellington
Copies to: Mark Williams (Head of HR), James Brereton (HR Consultant), John Walsh (Interim
Director: HR, Workforce & Organisational Development), Shahzia Daya Service Director: Legal &
Democratic Services , Husinara Jones (Lawyer), Steve Gregory (Democratic Services)

Issued by: Steve Gregory, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 92 24357
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Wednesday, 18 April 2018

Human Resources Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
(Pages 4 - 5)

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declarations of Interest

4.

Minutes of previous meetings

To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record.

5.

a)

8 March 2018

(Pages 6 - 10)

b)

20 March 2018

(Pages 11 - 12)

Public Forum

NB. up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item
Any member of the public or councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Please note that the following deadlines will apply in
relation to this meeting:Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in
this office at the latest by 5 pm on 20 April 2018.
Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on 25 April
2018.

6.

Standing item - Training & Development - Apprenticeships and
the Levy

2.10 pm
(Pages 13 - 30)

7.

Standing item - Industrial relations issues - Workforce policy
savings

2.30 pm

Human Resources Committee – Agenda

8.

Work Programme

To note the work programme.

(Page 31)

9.

2.50 pm

Amendments to the Code of Conduct for Employees

(Pages 32 - 43)
10. The Council's Pay Policy Statement for 1st April 2018 to 31st
March 2019

3.10 pm
(Pages 44 - 50)

11. Exclusion of the Press and Public
That under s.100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded
from the meeting for the following item(s) of business on the grounds that it
(they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
paragraph(s) *insert paragraph here* (respectively) of Part 1 of schedule 12A of
the Act.

12. Salary of the Senior Coroner

3.30 pm
(Pages 51 - 118)

13. Chief Officer case

3.40 pm

To follow

14. Salary of Director: Commercialisation and salary of Director:
Workforce & Change
(Pages 119 - 128)

Agenda Item 1
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
You can also inspect papers at the City Hall Reception, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR.
Other formats and languages and assistance
For those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.
Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee and be available in the meeting
room one hour before the meeting. Please submit it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk or
Democratic Services Section, City Hall, College Green, Bristol BS1 5UY. The following requirements
apply:



The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than three clear working days before the meeting.

Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, only the first sheet will be copied and made available at the
meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles
that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the committee. This information will
also be made available at the meeting to which it relates and placed in the official minute book as a
public record (available from Democratic Services).
We will try to remove personal information such as contact details. However, because of time
constraints we cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement

Page 4

www.bristol.gov.uk

contains information that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Public Forum statements
will not be posted on the council’s website. Other committee papers may be placed on the council’s
website and information in them may be searchable on the internet.
Process during the meeting:







Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as
short as one minute.
If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be available for two years. If you
ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have
given your consent to this. If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the
webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means
that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and
report on the meeting (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be
disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others
attending and that is not within the council’s control.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a
democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Human Resources Committee
8 March 2018 at 10 am
Members Present:Councillors: Kye Dudd (Chair), Paula O'Rourke (Vice-Chair), Harriet Clough (subst), Matthew Melias (subst),
Mike Langley, Jo Sergeant and Jon Wellington
Officers in Attendance:Mark Williams (Head of HR), James Brereton (HR Consultant), John Walsh (Interim Director: HR,
Workforce & Organisational Development), Mark Jefferson (Analytics Adviser), Husinara Jones
(Lawyer), Steve Gregory (Democratic Services)
1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
The Chair welcomed all parties to the meeting and introductions were made.
2. Apologies for Absence
Apologies were received from Councillor Eddy and Hopkins substituted respectively by Councillors Melias and
Clough.
3. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
4. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 January 2018
Resolved – that the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 January 2018 be agreed as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.
5. Public Forum
Members noted a public forum statement from UNITE and agreed to consider it under agenda item 7.
6. Standing item - Training & Development issues for staff
Apprenticeship Levy/Apprenticeship Service – Chair said it was important to keep spend under close scrutiny
and analyse what amounts had been spent, or not, and why. An update would be given to the next HR
Committee meeting on progress in 2017/18 in terms of numbers of apprentices and spending of the Levy
funds.
7. Standing item - Industrial Relation Issues

Page 6

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Proposed changes to redundancy and pay protection –
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Statement from UNITE was considered and objection to the proposal noted;
Head of HR advised that negotiations were ongoing including with two other trade unions;
There was a meeting next Wednesday about this;
A report would be brought to the 26 April HR Committee once all views had been considered;
A briefing note showing comparisons between statutory redundancy, current Council redundancy
policy and the Council’s proposed redundancy policy to be circulated to Members in advance of the
next meeting (Action: Mark Jefferson);
Members noted concerns of UNITE about the proposed lowering of the Council’s pay protection
period;
Head of HR reminded members that the full Council had agreed in February 2017 to make workforce
policy savings but emphasised that the proposals to reduce the redundancy payment/pay protection
should not be perceived as ‘an attack’ on employees conditions of service;
Head of HR confirmed that other options would also be considered and that the priority would be to
look for the least impact on the workforce;
Grading structures were also being reviewed and progressed. A number of options were being
considered.

8. Work Programme
The Committee noted the Work Programme.
9. HR Constitution - verbal update
The Committee was informed that a Constitution Working Group would be meeting in April to consider
proposals to the Council’s Constitution for recommendation to full Council at its AGM in May. The views of
the HR Committee would be included for consideration by the Group. It was anticipated that Councillor Craig
Cheney (Cabinet Member & Deputy Mayor – Finance, Governance and Performance) would submit a
statement clarifying the position on the HR Committee terms of reference.
Councillor O’Rourke formally requested that Councillor Craig Cheney be asked to clarify the policy position, as
soon as possible, in relation to the HR Committee’s already agreed position.
10. Corporate HR Dashboard (31st December 2017)
The Committee considered an information report relating to the Council’s workforce.
Serious concern was expressed about increasing levels of sickness absence and the notable decrease in the
number of return to work interviews being done, or possibly not being recorded, by managers. It was
acknowledged that this could be due to work pressures as all sickness ranging from a cold to stress/anxiety had
to be recorded in the same way. It was considered that managers might have to be selective regarding which
sickness absence cases were interviewed on return to work, depending on the status of the sickness versus
work pressures.
Other points clarified during discussion –
1. Responsibility for initiating return to work interviews was with the manager and not the
employee;

Page 7

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

2. An extra column be included in the information to show number of working days lost and
reasons why;
3. Managers would be made aware that Councillors were aware of the performance relating to
return to work interviews;
4. Overtime costs had risen in some areas and this would be looked into as longer term extra work
should ideally be converted into actual jobs, it was also noted that overtime was a cheaper
option than agency staff;
5. The number of days for casework to be completed had risen and needed to come down
significantly; this was acknowledged as a significant performance issue.
Resolved – that the report be noted and that a further report to identify and mitigate the key
issues raised be brought alongside the next Corporate HR Dashboard to a future meeting of the
Committee.
11. Head of Paid Service terms & conditions of employment and performance management
The Committee considered a report regarding the approval of the proposed terms and conditions of
employment for the role of Executive Director: Resources and Head of Paid Service and to recommend the
amended terms of reference, for the Performance Management Panel, to full Council.
Points clarified following questions on process and procedure –
1. Medical checks were only done once an offer of employment had been made;
2. Minimum three month notice regarding termination of employment was standard practice and in line
with the JNC national agreement;
3. An externally appointed candidate would be subject to the standard six month probationary period;
4. It was noted that an internal candidate would not be subject to the standard probationary period;
5. The procedure relating to compensation payments in the event of the Head of Paid Service leaving
was a matter of contractual law, however this issue would be further clarified by the Constitution
Group. It was confirmed that any settlement must first come to the Human Resources Committee for
consideration.
The recommendation of the report was then put to the vote.
There were four in favour and three abstentions.
Resolved –
1. That the proposed terms and conditions of employment for the role of Executive Director: Resources
and Head of Paid Service be approved;
2. That the amended terms of reference for the Performance Management Panel be recommended to
full Council.
12. Exclusion of the Press and Public
Resolved – that under Section 100 (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from
the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.
13. Pay of Director: Community Services and Director: Educational Improvement

Page 8

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

(Councillor Jo Sergeant was not present for this item)
The Committee considered a report proposing the payment of higher salaries to the Director: Community Services
and the Director: Educational Improvement.
Resolved – that the annual salaries for the Director: Community Services and the Director: Educational
Improvement be approved, as set out in the report.
14. JNC Chief Officer Case
(Councillor Jo Sergeant was not present for the vote on this item)
The Committee considered a report regarding the termination of a secondment to Bristol Waste Company and
the dismissal, on grounds of redundancy, of the former Service Director of Environment and Leisure.
A statement from the former Service Director of Environment and Leisure was received by the Committee.
After careful consideration the Committee voted on the recommendation as set out in the report, on being put to
the vote there were four in favour and two abstentions.
Resolved – That power to issue contractual notice of dismissal on grounds of redundancy to the former
Service Director Environment and Leisure be delegated to the Interim Director: HR, Workforce &
Organisational Development.
Meeting ended at 12.30

CHAIR

Page 9

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Page 10

Agenda Item 4b
democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

Bristol City Council
Minutes of an extraordinary meeting of the
Human Resources Committee
20 March 2018 at 3.30pm
Members Present:Councillors: Kye Dudd (Chair), Paula O'Rourke (Vice-Chair), Claire Hiscott (sub for Richard Eddy), Harriet
Clough (sub for Gary Hopkins), Mike Langley, Don Alexander (sub for Jo Sergeant) and Jon Wellington
Officers in Attendance:James Brereton (HR Consultant), John Walsh (Interim Director: HR, Workforce & Organisational
Development), Mark Jefferson (Analytics Adviser), Claudette Campbell (Democratic Services)
1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
The Chair welcomed all parties to the meeting and introductions were made.
2. Apologies for Absence
Apologies were received from Councillor Gary Hopkins (substituted by Councillor Harriet Clough) Councillor
Richard Eddy (substituted by Councillor Claire Hiscott) and Councillor Jo Sergeant (substituted by Councillor
Don Alexander).
3. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
4. Exclusion of the Press and Public
Resolved – that under Section 100 (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from
the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.
5. Salary for the role of Head of Paid Service
The Committee considered a report which set out the proposed salary for the role of Head of Paid Service.
It was noted that:
 The recruitment process had included a discussion with all candidates regarding salary expectations;
 The living wage comparison showed that the proposed salary fell within the 10:1 pay ratio;
 The employment contract would not include a bonus payment;

Page 11






democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

There would be robust performance management;
The post was a permanent position;
That a six month probation period would apply;
A report would be brought back to the HR Committee prior to the end of the probation period in
respect of performance information.

Resolved – that the salary for the role of Head of Paid Service, as set out in the report, be approved.

Meeting ended at 15:45

CHAIR

Page 12

Agenda Item 6

HR Committee
26th April 2018
Report of:

Service Director, Education, Learning and Skills

Title:

Apprenticeships and the Levy

Ward:

N/A

Officer(s) Presenting Report:

Jane Taylor (Head of Service, Employment Skills and Learning)
Darren Perkins (Apprenticeship Manager)

Contact Telephone Number:

07810506586

Recommendation
That the Committee notes the report.
Summary
This report provides the Committee with an update regarding the establishment of the Bristol
Apprenticeship Service following Cabinet approval on 27th June 2017.
The significant issues in the report are:
- A cross Council Apprenticeship Steering Group is helping shape a new Apprenticeship Strategy
- The Apprenticeship Service now has a dedicated Team Leader to focus on BCC apprenticeship
development and recruitment
- Commissioning and procurement processes have been developed and an initial round of applications
and tenders are being processed
- The Council's initial plan to supplement Levy funds with ESFA Non-levy funding has been impacted due
to unsuccessful tender – this is being addressed through interim measures, including Section 106
- The Council is leading one of the ‘5 Cities’ Apprenticeship Diversity Hubs with the National
Apprenticeship Service and the Combined Authority
- By October 2018 we are aiming to start approximately 100 new apprenticeships from Level 2 to Level 6

Page 13

Levy and Apprenticeship Reforms
1. Since the last full report August 2017 significant changes have been made to BCC systems to
manage the Levy funded Apprenticeships offer and enable the Council to fulfil its Public Sector
Duty by 2021.
2. A Bristol Apprenticeship Steering Group has been formed, Chaired by Sue Rogers, Service Director
Education, Learning and Skills with cross-council department and Trade Union representation. This
group is currently developing a 3-year strategy and implementation plan, which is linking to the
Council’s Workforce Development Plan.
3. Bristol Apprenticeship Service has been formed and a Team Leader appointed (March 2018) to
manage operations – including performance management of delivery partners and
support/awareness raising within BCC teams.
4. Following an Education and Skills Funding Agency procurement exercise the Council was
unsuccessful in gaining a contract to deliver apprenticeships for non-Levy paying employers in the
period April 2018 to March 2019. This has created a significant delay of 7-months in the Council’s
ability to fully implement our own apprenticeship delivery as an Employer Provider. A remedial
action plan is in place to sustain provision for 12 months – including Section 106 investment. In
discussion with Education and Skills Funding Agency the Council will offer ‘Programme- Led’
apprenticeships to ensure services to small construction employers will continue. This
arrangement will lead to small local employers accessing the Digital Apprenticeship Service April
2019.
5. BCC has been invited to and has agreed to lead one of 5 National Apprenticeship Service Core
Cities Apprentice Diversity Hubs with an over-arching objective of increasing Black, Asian and
Minority Ethnic apprentice starts by 200 by 2020. This is a partnership programme which will
coordinate under the ‘Works’ banner to ensure employer involvement is maximised and activities
are aligned to Learning City partnership priorities also.
6. An extensive procurement process, using a ‘Dynamic Purchasing System’ has been instigated and
so far 15 training providers approved to bid for apprentice delivery contracts as BCC develops its
offer March 2018 using the DPS we issued 3 ‘Lots’ covering:
a. Leadership and Management (Level 3 to 6 apprenticeships) – aimed at existing staff for roles
including Team Leadership/Supervision; School Business Management, Project Management,
Operations Management and Chartered Management = 70 start opportunities with Levy spend of
£533k.
b. Health and Social Care (Level 2, 3 and 5 apprenticeships) – a mix of existing staff and new
recruits (e.g. through Proud to Care Reablement campaign) for roles in Adult Care = 70 start
opportunities with Levy spend of £300k.

Page 14

c. Business and Administration (Level 2 and 3 apprenticeships) – a mix of new recruits and existing
staff = 90 start opportunities with Levy spend of £200k.
Responses to the tender information are in process of being assessed and evaluations of bids are
being completed with support of relevant departments where possible. Providers have been
encouraged to offer co-design opportunities so we can ensure the programmes suitably match our
needs. Within Leadership and Management we are also requesting delivery support to provide a
Level 5 Management Certificate for participants on the ‘Stepping Up’ programme.
Further significant ‘Call Offs’ to follow in relation to: Teaching and Support in Local Managed
Schools and Children’s Centres; Accounting and Finance and Children’s Care.
Currently in discussion with Open University regarding our first Degree Apprenticeship and there
are a host of other opportunities being considered/developed e.g. Graphic Design; Social Work;
Law; Civil Engineering, Chartered Building Surveying and Community Development.
7. Initial rounds of apprentice recruitment are underway with 9 starts to new scheme joining the
Council 19th March 2018 on Business Administration programmes and a further 11 similar
opportunities on offer (interviews 16th to 20th April 2018). Early indications are that the Council will
continue its good record of recruiting apprentices from diverse backgrounds but that we have
increased the % of 16 to 18 year olds seeking opportunities through our apprenticeship scheme.
Whilst these numbers maintain apprentice numbers at April 2017 levels the new offer will start to
impact numbers from Autumn 2019.
8. From April 2018, Bristol City Council can elect to share 10% of its apprenticeship levy with external
employers. This provides an opportunity to build the capacity of small and medium enterprises and
partner employers, including local businesses that supply critical services to Bristol citizens and
communities. However, this reform will not reach its full potential for some time as Education and
Skills Funding Agency are restricting its use during a pilot stage of indeterminate length.
Consultation
9.
Internal
Not required because this report is for information only.
10.
External
Not required because this report is for information only.
Proposal
11.

That the Committee notes the report.

Other Options Considered
12.

None.

Risk Assessment
13.

Not required because this report is for information only.

Page 15

Public Sector Equality Duties
14a) Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected characteristics”:
age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual
orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the need to:
i)

Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.

ii)

Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to
the need to --

-

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic that are
different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled people, this
includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any
other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii)

Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
tackle prejudice; and promote understanding.

14b)

Not required because this report is for information only.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
Not required because this report is for information only.
Financial
Not required because this report is for information only.
Land
Not applicable.
Personnel
Not required because this report is for information only.
Appendices:
A. Apprenticeship Providers Training Briefs
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Page 16

Bristol City Council
Training Brief for the provision of apprenticeship training services in:
LOT 1: Business Administration

1.0: Introduction
In 2017 Bristol City Council invited training companies to tender for specific Apprenticeship
Training Lots through Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS). The procurement attracted over 20
training companies that expressed an interest and completed bids. Each bid application has
been considered, reviewed and quality graded.
Bristol City Council are now pleased to continue our Apprenticeship Procurement with
providers that have achieved an adequate quality score and move to stage 2 of the
procurement exercise.
This brief contains additional information that we would like training providers to review
and use when developing their responses to the brief. Stage 2 requires providers to
complete and return the following:



Pro-contract call off response, including:
Individual Training Agreement (ITA)

It is important that all questions are answered within these two documents and supporting
evidence is provided. Any companies that fail to supply the requested information or
supporting documentation will not progress to the next stage.
1.1: Bristol City Council Apprenticeship objective
Bristol City Council have provided a number of apprenticeship opportunities to existing and
new staff within the council for over 8 years, the success of apprenticeships have enabled

Page
17 administration brief for BCC apprentices
LOT
1: Business

our business to gain skilled and competent staff of which the majority have remained within
our business.
In 2017, the Apprenticeship Levy came into effect. We anticipate our levy fund to be £1.1m
per annum and our objective is to utilise this levy to enable us to offer increased
apprenticeship training to existing staff and attracting new apprentices into our business.
Bristol Apprenticeship Service (BAS) has been set up as a service from the council and this
service will focus upon the commissioning and delivery of apprenticeship training activities
on behalf of Bristol City Council and other employers within the local area.
Our objective is to ensure that we offer suitable and high quality apprenticeship
programmes to enable our business to grow and for staff within the council to enhance their
skills and capabilities. To achieve this, we wish to enter into partnerships that have been codesigned with providers and with our departments and schools. We believe this will ensure
greater all round ownership of the scheme and encourage innovation and best practice.
In broad terms, scheme will operate using the following models:
1. Model A – Employer Provider. Overall responsibility of the programme will be
managed by Bristol City Council and elements of the training will be sub-contracted
to high quality delivery partners.
2. Model B – Lead Provider – Provider will access agreed funding for delivery direct
from Bristol City Council levy.
2.0: Business Administration Apprenticeship
Bristol City Council offers a range of services to Bristol residents, including services to
schools, learning and early years through to Museums and Parks. We have over 15
categories of services that we offer and within each of these administrators are
fundamental to the smooth operation of these services.
Business administration apprenticeship opportunities will comprise of intermediate level
through to advanced (or level 3) apprenticeship programmes. Initially we anticipate
apprentices will commence training at level 2; however, in certain circumstances new
entrants will need to be assessed for direct entry at level 3.
Each apprentice that commences an apprenticeship programme receives a 2 year
apprenticeship contract, their objective is to complete their initial training programme
within 13 months and we expect a majority will progress to the next level.
2.1: Our requirements for Business Administration Apprenticeships


Model B approach. Training provider to act as lead provider and access the
funding from our levy account.

Page
18 administration brief for BCC apprentices
LOT
1: Business



Local delivery – either from provider or Bristol City Council premises.

Training provider to:
-

-

-



Deliver all aspects of the apprenticeship programme and ensure compliance
with regulatory bodies including ESFA, Ofsted and awarding bodies
Be responsible for learner enrolment to the programme and the awarding
body
Provide quality provision and monitor apprentices effectively to provide best
chance of success and timely completion
Provide testing ahead of enrolment for literacy, numeracy and ICT to use as
part of programme plan for functional skills delivery
Provide solutions for specific learner needs. For example; additional support
packages for learners with increased learning requirements
Provide learners with all the materials required to successfully achieve their
apprenticeship programme, including access to software packages where
required
Provide mentor training for apprentices direct line manager
Organise and manage EPA for apprenticeship standards
Provide effective communication to relevant council staff; including reporting
of absences, timely reports, access to software for student tracking, regular
progress reviews and regular review meetings in accordance with
performance management framework
Deliver and ensure that apprentices achieve within their contract timeframes
Provide Bristol City Council with a schedule of the training programme for the
entirety of the programme. This would include any planned training sessions
at a particular location and all planned assessor visits

Volumes:
Indicative annual intakes as follows:
Programme
Level `
Business Administration
2
Intermediate
Apprenticeship
Business Administration
3
Advanced Apprenticeship

Volume
50
40

Annual intake numbers are likely to be achieved through 3 separate recruitment
cycles – Spring, Summer and Autumn.

Page
19 administration brief for BCC apprentices
LOT
1: Business

3.0: Pricing:
For this particular programme, we are inviting training providers to act as the lead provider
and therefore the costs should be indicated to include all the training, assessment and EPA
(if applicable).
For training providers that might be interested to use our offices as the delivery location;
the submission will need to include details of total number of days you would require our
premises and the day rate that you would pay for our training room facilities.
Further information
Bristol Apprenticeship Service has been set up to enable the Bristol City Council to set up
new apprenticeship training provision and utilise the apprenticeship levy to maximise skills
and knowledge to existing and new staff. By 2021, Bristol City Council are required to have
2.3% of their workforce on apprenticeship agreements and based upon the current staff
within the council and managed schools this would equate to 276 apprentices.
We are looking to work with training providers that we can build good working relationships
with and where possible local partners.
Our objective is to ensure that we contract with suitable training partners to fulfil the needs
of our learners and business units.
Should you have any questions, please email Bristol.apprentices@bristol.gov.uk.

Page
20 administration brief for BCC apprentices
LOT
1: Business

Bristol City Council
Training Brief for the provision of apprenticeship training services in:
LOT 3: Leadership and Management

1.0: Introduction
In 2017 Bristol City Council invited training companies to tender for specific Apprenticeship
Training Lots through Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS). The procurement attracted over 20
training companies that expressed an interest and completed bids. Each bid application has
been considered and reviewed and quality graded.
Bristol City Council are now pleased to continue our Apprenticeship Procurement with
providers that have achieved an adequate quality score and move to stage 2 of the
procurement exercise.
This brief contains additional information that we would like training providers to review
and use when developing their responses to the brief. Stage 2 requires providers to
complete and return the following:



Pro-contract call off response, including:
Individual Training Agreement (ITA)

It is important that all questions are answered within these two documents and supporting
evidence is provided. Any companies that fail to supply the requested information or
supporting documentation will not progress to the next stage.

Page
21 and Management for BCC apprentices
LOT
3: Leadership

1.1: Bristol City Council Apprenticeship objective
Bristol City Council have provided a number of apprenticeship opportunities to existing and
new staff within the council for over 8 years, the success of apprenticeships have enabled
our business to gain skilled and competent staff of which the majority have remained within
our business.
In 2017, the Apprenticeship Levy came into effect. We anticipate our levy fund to be £1.1m
per annum and our objective is to utilise this levy to enable us to offer increased
apprenticeship training to existing staff and attracting new apprentices into our business.
Bristol Apprenticeship Service (BAS) has been set up as a service from the council and this
service will focus upon the commissioning and delivery of apprenticeship training activities
on behalf of Bristol City Council and other employers within the local area.
Our objective is to ensure that we offer suitable and high quality apprenticeship
programmes to enable our business to grow and for staff within the council to enhance their
skills and capabilities. To achieve this, we wish to enter into partnerships that have been codesigned with providers and with our departments and schools. We believe this will ensure
greater all round ownership of the scheme and encourage innovation and best practice.
In broad terms, scheme will operate using the following models:
1. Model A – Employer Provider. Overall responsibility of the programme will be
managed by Bristol City Council and elements of the training will be sub-contracted
to high quality delivery partners.
2. Model B – Lead Provider. Provider will access agreed funding for delivery direct from
Bristol City Council levy.
2.0: Leadership and Management Apprenticeships
Bristol City Council is committed to staff development and progression; training is a
mechanism that helps to achieve this. Many of our current leaders within our organisation
started their career with us and have been promoted from within.
Our requirements for Leadership and Management Apprenticeships will be across a range of
departments within the council and include a range of levels.
We are engaging for this competition to seek providers to assist us with our two strands of
Leadership and Management Apprenticeships. We have two pathways; pathway 1 is to link
employees onto Apprenticeship Standards and pathway 2 is to link to Stepping Up, a newly
designed programme (further detail in 2.2. and appendix 1).
On your submission, please ensure that your response clearly provides your intention to
tender for pathway 1, pathway 2 or both.

Page
22 and Management for BCC apprentices
LOT
3: Leadership

2.1: Pathway 1 – Leadership and Management Standards
We have identified Leadership and Management as a key staff developmental strand linked
to a series of existing internal training programmes; we foresee a growing demand in a
range of standards to be delivered.
We are looking for training partners, who can join us to achieve optimum results, we are
interested to gain input from providers on a range of the different approaches, this might be
through Model A (Employer Provider) or Model B (Training provider to be Lead Provider).
The Standards we have identified a requirement for are:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Team Leader/Supervisor
Associate Project Manager
School Business Professional
Operations Department Manager
HR Consultant/Partner
Chartered Manager/Partner

In your response, please detail which of the above standards that you are interested to
tender for.
Please ensure that you review the following and address these in your submission and
where possible provide examples or evidence of success:
-

-

-

-

How will you co-design the programme with relevant council department
teams to develop a successful programme that will benefit all parties?
Can you provide a flexible approach to the development and delivery of
specific training elements and any qualifications that might be deemed
necessary
How will you ensure that the programmes are a success, please comment on
performance tracking systems
Provide details of delivery for the approach you are interested in, provide
details of how specific aspects will be delivered and how your organisation
will ensure compliance with the regulatory bodies.
How will you ensure that you provide quality provision and monitor
apprentices effectively to ensure timely progress is achieved in order to meet
timeframes?
Is your organisation able to offer initial testing to candidates and please
detail whether you will be responsible for learner enrolment.
Do you have the capability to provide support for learners that have specific
learner needs?
Identify the materials that you will provide to the learners, this might include
software or electronic information.

Page
23 and Management for BCC apprentices
LOT
3: Leadership

-

-

How will you communicate to relevant council staff; including reporting of
absences, timely reports, access to software for student tracking, regular
progress reviews and regular review meetings
Please describe how you will assist the council with internal promotion to
departments and relevant staff

You can address this information in your responses to the questionnaire or upon completion
of ITA (Individual Training Agreement)
2.1: Pathway 2 - Stepping Up BAME Leadership Development Programme
The Stepping Up Programme is a collaborative programme developing leadership skills and
the Council will be delivering in line with the Operations Department Manager
Apprenticeship Standard. Therefore it is important to review the programme (appendix 1)
alongside this briefing document. Bristol City Council seeks training partners to provide
support to underpinning knowledge and the delivery of an ILM or CMI Level 5 qualification.
As part of the manifesto of the Mayor, Marvin Rees sets out the aspiration to change the
leadership landscape across Bristol so that it more readily reflects the population and multicultural ethos of the City and this has resulted in the production of a programme named
Stepping Up.
Stepping Up will create the first BAME (Black, Asian & Minority Ethnic) talent pool in Bristol.
The talent pool will supply a ready flow of individuals with aspirations and skills to reach the
most senior roles. The concept of Stepping Up emerged from feedback from the Mayor’s
Diversity Roundtable. The design of the talent pipeline and pool has been co-created with
employers.
The ambition for the Stepping Up programme is that in subsequent years the programme
will be opened to draw on diversity in the wider sense, however for year one the
programme is dedicated to individuals from BAME.
Please tailor your bid response to the model below:


Model A – Employer Provider. Overall responsibility of the programme will be
managed by Bristol City Council and elements of the training will be sub-contracted
to high quality delivery partners.

In your submission, please highlight the ways in which you envisage your organisation will
work with us to fulfil this ambition. Please clarify your capability to deliver the elements
required for the standard that are not contained within the Stepping Up Programme.

Page
24 and Management for BCC apprentices
LOT
3: Leadership

Training provider to:
-

-

-

-

-

-

-



Co-design the programme with relevant council department teams to
develop a successful programme that will benefit all parties. The council’s
objective is to utilise where possible physical and human resources for the
development and delivery of the programmes
Provide a flexible approach to the development and delivery of specific
training elements and any qualifications that might be deemed necessary (for
example ILM)
Work in conjunction with Bristol City Council to develop performance and
tracking systems to ensure the programme runs smoothly and provides the
apprentice with the best chance of success
Deliver specific aspects of the apprenticeship programme and ensure
compliance with regulatory bodies including ESFA, Ofsted and relevant
awarding bodies
Potentially be responsible for learner enrolment for specific elements of the
programme, this might include registering learners with awarding bodies and
EPA
Provide quality provision and monitor apprentices effectively to ensure
timely progress is achieved in order to meet timeframes
Ability to provide testing ahead of enrolment for literacy and numeracy to
use as part of programme plan for functional skills delivery
Have the ability to provide solutions for specific learner needs. For example;
additional support packages for learners with increased learning
requirements
Provide learners with all the materials required to successfully achieve their
apprenticeship programme, including access to software packages required
Provide effective communication to relevant council staff; including reporting
of absences, timely reports, access to software for student tracking, regular
progress reviews and regular review meetings

Volumes:
Indicative annual intakes as follows:
Apprenticeship Standard
Team Leader/Supervisor
Associate Project Manager
School Business Professional
Operations Department Manager
HR Consultant/Partner
Chartered Manager Degree
Apprenticeship

Level `
3
4
4
5
5
6

Volume
20
20
8
21
5
3

Page
25 and Management for BCC apprentices
LOT
3: Leadership

Annual intake numbers are likely to be achieved through 3 separate recruitment
cycles – Spring, Summer and Autumn.
3.0: Pricing:
For this tender, please can you make sure that you clearly detail whether you will be
tendering for pathway 1, pathway 2 or both.




Pathway 1 – we are open to providers informing us of the preferred delivery
model. Please complete the attached excel price structure with pricing
information
Pathway 2 – please provide details based upon Model A approach. Please
complete the excel price structure document.

If wishing to use our facilities as the delivery mechanism, the submission will need to include
details of total number of days you would require our premises and the day rate that you
would pay for our training room facilities.
Further information
Bristol Apprenticeship Service has been set up to enable the Bristol City Council to set up
new apprenticeship training provision and utilise the apprenticeship levy to maximise skills
and knowledge to existing and new staff. By 2021, Bristol City Council are required to have
2.3% of their workforce on apprenticeship agreements and based upon the current staff
within the council and managed schools this would equate to 276 apprentices.
We are looking to work with training providers that we can build good working relationships
with and where possible local partners.
Our objective is to ensure that we contract with suitable training partners to fulfil the needs
of our learners and business units.
Should you have any questions, please email Bristol.apprentices@bristol.gov.uk

Page
26 and Management for BCC apprentices
LOT
3: Leadership

Bristol City Council
Training Brief for the provision of apprenticeship training services in:
LOT 15: Health and Social Care

1.0: Introduction
In 2017 Bristol City Council invited training companies to tender for specific Apprenticeship
Training Lots through Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS). The procurement attracted over 20
training companies that expressed an interest and completed bids. Each bid application has
been considered and reviewed and quality graded.
Bristol City Council are now pleased to continue our Apprenticeship Procurement with
providers that have achieved an adequate quality score and move to stage 2 of the
procurement exercise.
This brief contains additional information that we would like training providers to review
and use when developing their responses to the brief. Stage 2 requires providers to
complete and return the following:



Pro-contract call off response, including:
Individual Training Agreement (ITA)

It is important that all questions are answered within these two documents and supporting
evidence is provided. Any companies that fail to supply the requested information or
supporting documentation will not progress to the next stage.
1.1: Bristol City Council Apprenticeship objective
Bristol City Council have provided a number of apprenticeship opportunities to existing and
new staff within the council for over 8 years, the success of apprenticeships have enabled

Page
LOT 27
15: Health and Social Care for BCC apprentices

our business to gain skilled and competent staff of which the majority have remained within
our business.
In 2017, the Apprenticeship Levy came into effect. We anticipate our levy fund to be £1.1m
per annum and our objective is to utilise this levy to enable us to offer increased
apprenticeship training to existing staff and attracting new apprentices into our business.
Bristol Apprenticeship Service (BAS) has been set up as a service from the council and this
service will focus upon the commissioning and delivery of apprenticeship training activities
on behalf of Bristol City Council and other employers within the local area.
Our objective is to ensure that we offer suitable and high quality apprenticeship
programmes to enable our business to grow and for staff within the council to enhance their
skills and capabilities. To achieve this, we wish to enter into partnerships that have been codesigned with providers and with our departments and schools. We believe this will ensure
greater all round ownership of the scheme and encourage innovation and best practice.
In broad terms, scheme will operate using the following models:
1. Model A – Employer Provider. Overall responsibility of the programme will be
managed by Bristol City Council and elements of the training will be sub-contracted
to high quality delivery partners.
2. Model B – Lead Provider. Provider will access agreed funding for delivery direct from
Bristol City Council levy.
2.0: Adult Health and Social Care
Bristol City Council offers a range of services to Adult Health and Social Care to Bristol
residents and service represents almost one third of the council’s expenditure. The Adult
Health and Social Care Services are a vitally important service within the council and the
pressures within this service are rapidly increasing with the aging population within Bristol.
Bristol City Council require apprenticeship training programmes for existing staff to be
enrolled upon and possibly apprenticeship programmes for future employees within this
sector.
2.1: Our requirements for Health and Social Work Apprenticeships
In order to offer Bristol City Council staff and units with an optimum offer to meet their
needs and drive excellence this programme will be co-designed with suitable partners.
In your submission, please highlight the ways in which you envisage your organisation
working with us to fulfil this ambition. Please clarify your capability to deliver either/or of
the models we describe and how you would work collaboratively to co-design the
apprenticeship programme

Page
LOT 28
15: Health and Social Care for BCC apprentices

You will note we are preparing for anticipated numbers of children’s workforce staff to
access future apprenticeship standards. The plan is for suitable providers to be available to
undertake co-design of the future programme as soon as standards are approved for
delivery.
Training provider to:
-

-

-

-

-

-



Co-design the programme with relevant council department teams to
develop a successful programme that will benefit all parties. The council’s
objective is to utilise where possible physical and human resources for the
development and delivery of the programmes
Provide a flexible approach to the development and delivery of specific
training elements and any qualifications that might be deemed necessary
Work in conjunction with Bristol City Council to develop performance and
tracking systems to ensure the programme runs smoothly and provides the
apprentice with the best chance of success
Deliver specific aspects of the apprenticeship programme and ensure
compliance with regulatory bodies including ESFA and Ofsted and awarding
bodies
Potentially be responsible for learner enrolment for specific elements of the
programme, this might include registering learners with awarding bodies and
EPA
Provide quality provision and monitor apprentices effectively to ensure
timely progress is achieved in order to meet timeframes
Ability to provide testing ahead of enrolment for literacy and numeracy to
use as part of programme plan for functional skills delivery
Have the ability to provide solutions for specific learner needs. For example;
additional support packages for learners with increased learning
requirements
Provide learners with all the materials required to successfully achieve their
apprenticeship programme, including access to software packages required
Provide effective communication to relevant council staff; including reporting
of absences, timely reports, access to software for student tracking, regular
progress reviews and regular review meetings

Volumes:
Indicative annual intakes as follows:
Programme
Adult Care Worker
Apprenticeship Standard

Level `
2

Volume
30

Page
LOT 29
15: Health and Social Care for BCC apprentices

Lead Adult Care Worker
Apprenticeship Standard
Higher Apprenticeship in
Care Leadership and
Management
Children’s Workforce
Apprenticeships

3

12

5

5

2,3 & 5

25

Annual intake numbers are likely to be achieved through 3 separate recruitment
cycles – Spring, Summer and Autumn.
3.0: Pricing:
For this tender, we are open to providers informing us of the preferred delivery model.
Therefore in this instance, please provide us with pricing information for each of the models
that you are proposing using the attached excel document that has a tab for Model A and a
tab for Model B – providers wishing to tender for both options, will need to complete both.
If wishing to use our facilities as the delivery mechanism, the submission will need to include
details of total number of days you would require our premises and the day rate that you
would pay for our training room facilities.

Page
LOT 30
15: Health and Social Care for BCC apprentices

Agenda Item 8
HR Committee
Work programme
26th April 2018
2018/19









Salary of the Senior Coroner
Each meeting to focus on one Workforce Plan theme:
o Diversity & inclusion
o Employer brand & recruitment
o Health & wellbeing
o Organisational culture
o Performance & talent management
o Structure, pay & policy
Avon Pension Fund annual report
Corporate HR Dashboard (quarterly)
Pay Policy Statement
Gender pay gap and race pay gap

Page 31

Agenda Item 9

HR Committee
26th April 2018
Report of:

Interim Director: HR, ICT and Change

Title:

Amendments to Code of Conduct for Employees

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report:

Mark Williams (HR Business Partner)

Contact Telephone Number:

0117 92 24838

Recommendation
That the Committee approves the proposed amendments to the Code of Conduct for Employees.
Summary
A range of separate matters are considered to be inadequately covered in the Code of Conduct for
Employees. New or amended items have been drafted for inclusion to address this shortfall in coverage.
The significant issues in the report are:
The amendments are summarised below. The proposed wording of amendments to the Code of Conduct
is in Appendix A.

Page 32

Policy
1.

The Code of Conduct for Employees is contractual for all employees.

Consultation
2.

Internal
The Resources Executive Director Meeting has approved the proposals.
The proposals have been consulted and agreed with the trade unions.

3.

External
None.

Context
4.

Learning points from operational work, developments in technology and changes over time have
highlighted aspects of the Code of Conduct which are not adequately covered at present.

5.

The proposed amendments are intended to address the relevant shortfall in coverage, thereby
ensuring that all employees understand expected behaviours in those aspects of their
employment.

6.

Summary of items as follows:
Code of conduct
item
Identity cards
Raising issues
concerning Bristol
City Council
Disclosure of
criminal
proceedings
Media
Security of
portable
equipment
Mobile phone use
Photography

Recordings

Objective
Clarifies responsibility to always wear ID.
Clarifies the appropriate route for an employee to raise issues about
Bristol City Council either as an employee or citizen.
Introduces requirement to disclose any proceedings to which an employee
is subject which they should reasonably understand may impact on their
role, professional standing or Council reputation. (The Code already states
that disciplinary action will be taken if serious misconduct/criminal offence
is committed).
Clarifies that the provision is not intended to prevent or deter lawful
whistleblowing.
Reminder to staff of responsibility to keep equipment safe and secure.
Removes reference to repayment procedures. States personal use outside
the UK is prohibited.
Given the prevalence of mobile phones with cameras in the workplace,
clarifies responsibilities and requirements under the Data Protection Act
to ensure relevant permissions are gained before taking or publishing
photographs.
Recording can be agreed in some circumstances (eg, if as a reasonable
adjustment arising from a disability) but covert recordings are not

Page 33

Regulated
professions

permitted.
Staff required to be registered must maintain registration and follow
relevant code of practice.

Proposal
7.

That the Committee approves the proposed amendments to the Code of Conduct for Employees.

Other Options Considered
8.

None.

Risk Assessment
9.

If the amendments are not incorporated in the Code of Conduct there will be gaps in its
provisions resulting in employees not understanding expected behaviours, potentially to the
detriment of the organisation.

Public Sector Equality Duties
10a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.

Page 34

10b)

Appendix B provides an equalities impact assessment.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
“The Report recommends amendments to the Council’s Code of Conduct for Employees. The
Code of Conduct forms part of an employee’s terms and conditions of employment. Legal advice
has been taken and incorporated in relation to the proposed amendments to the Code of
Conduct.”
Advice provided by Husinara Jones (Lawyer), 10th April 2018
Financial
(a) Revenue
“No financial comment”
(b) Capital
Not applicable.
Advice provided by Kevin Lock (Finance Manager), 9th April 2018
Land
Not applicable.
Personnel
“The amendments will become part of all employees’ contractual terms and conditions and will
be communicated to employees accordingly.”
Advice provided by Mark Williams (Head of HR), 10th April 2018
Appendices:
Appendix A – Proposed amendments to the Code of Conduct for Employees
Appendix B – Equalities Impact Assessment Screening
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None.

Page 35

Appendix A
Proposed amendments to Code of Conduct for Employees
Proposed amendments to existing sections (amendments/additions in italics):
4. Health and Safety
4.1 You have a duty of care as prescribed in the corporate Health and Safety policy, and must not act
wilfully or intentionally in a manner liable to place the public, your colleagues, or yourself at risk.
Identity Cards
4.2 You must wear your identity card at all times on Council premises.
Conflicts of Interest
7. Public Duty and Private Interest
7.1 Your off-duty hours are your personal concern but you should not put yourself in a position where there
is a conflict of interests between your private life and public duties. If, for example you are a member of a
secret society which may cause a conflict of interest, such as the Freemasons, you must declare your
membership to your manager and on a declaration form that will be held on your HR record.
7.2
If you have suggestions or concerns about service delivery you should raise these internally, with
your manager. Suggestions about service delivery away from your own service area can also be raised with
relevant management, through staff forums or with your trade union.
7.3 If you are considering asking questions or putting statements as a citizen to public Council meetings
you should do so in your own time using your own resources (e.g. not with work email). You must be clear
that you are doing so as a citizen and not as a Council employee. You should not lobby a councillor(s)
inappropriately on personal employment matters. If you are unsure you are advised to seek guidance from
your manager. This does not restrict your right to raise concerns regarding possible malpractice under the
whistleblowing policy.
7.4 The council reserves the right to bring action against you where your conduct outside work conflicts
with your public duties, or could undermine the council’s reputation or public confidence.
7.5 All employees must disclose information which is relevant to their capability, capacity and suitability to
carry out the duties and responsibilities for which they are employed. An employee must immediately
inform their manager in writing if during their employment with the Council they are subject to any of the
following which it would be reasonable to understand may impact upon their role, professional standing or
the reputation of the Council:
· Advised that they are under investigation for a criminal act (including road traffic offences)
· Arrested in connection with a criminal act
· Notified that criminal charges are being considered against them
· In receipt of a summons to appear before a Court of Law for an alleged offence
· Found guilty and convicted of any offence
· Given a police caution
Or any other relevant matter.
Employees who are required to drive as part of their duties must also declare any penalties received in
connection with motoring offences.

Page 36

In all cases a failure to disclose relevant information or the deliberate withholding of such information can
amount to a breach of trust and confidence and may lead to disciplinary action up to and including
dismissal.
7.6 Serious misconduct or criminal offences committed during or outside working hours, which bring you or
the council into disrepute, will be subject to disciplinary action under the council’s Disciplinary policy, and
may result in dismissal.
7.7 If you are involved with granting permissions or benefits, for example, planning permission, you must
take no part in considering any application made by yourself, relative, friend or neighbour.
19. The Media
19.1 In general, all communications with the media relating to the activities of the council are handled
through the Corporate Communications Office. You are not permitted to communicate with the media on
matters relating to the activities of the council without authorisation from the Corporate Communications
Office. If you are contacted by journalists you should refer them to the Corporate Communications Office.
This is not intended to prevent or deter lawful whistleblowing.
22. Use of Council Facilities and Systems
22.1 The council’s property and facilities are provided for official council business. You are responsible for
taking reasonable steps to ensure the safety and security of any portable equipment provided to you. All
council-owned portable equipment and devices must be returned on leaving council employment and any
council- owned or supplied data must be deleted. Access to systems used for council purposes must be
terminated permanently.
24. Telephones and Mobile Phones
24.1 Generally, You should use the telephone or other mobile devices provided by the council for business
use only. Where personal use outside working hours of specific devices, e.g., Blackberrys, is permitted, costs
must be paid in line with repayment procedures.
24.2 The council recognises in exceptional circumstances it may be necessary for you to make or receive
personal calls or email during working hours using the device - personal use should be brief, and made
during your breaks if possible. You must not use your device for personal calls outside the U.K.
27. Social networking websites
27.2 The council respects your right to a private life and you are encouraged to exercise discretion and use
social media responsibly at all times. The council must also ensure relevant protection for its operations,
confidential information and reputation. If using social networking websites at work or in your private life,
the following applies to you:
 You must avoid making any social media communications that could damage the council’s business,
operations or reputation, even indirectly.
 You must not use social media to:
1. defame or disparage the council, staff or any third party;
2. harass, bully or unlawfully discriminate against staff or third parties;
3. make false or misleading statements; or
4. impersonate colleagues or third parties
5. upload or publish without consent photographs taken on Council premises or of Council
employees(refer to section’x’ [tbc] for further information on Photography)
Proposed new sections:

Page 37

Photography
Any photography which takes place during the course of your employment or your working time, should be
by consent of the individuals being photographed and if relevant, your line manager. Photographs which
are taken during your working time of or within non-Council premises must have the permission of owner
of the premises.
If you plan to publish or upload any photographs to the internet or social media you must get the written
permission of all identifiable people before doing so. Photographs of children require the written consent
of parents or carers and permission from your line manager.
Recordings
The Council expects that the recording of a meeting or conversation during the course of employment will
take place only with the consent of all those present. Where a request is made to make a recording, it will
be considered on a case by case basis taking into account relevant considerations for example where
recording of a meeting may be a reasonable adjustment related to an employee’s disability. The Council
will reserve the right to request a copy of the recording. The Council does not permit covert recording
under any circumstances. Any such recording will be considered to be a disciplinary matter.
Professional Qualifications, Registrations and Conduct
Where your employment with the Council is in a post which requires you to be registered with a statutory
and/or professional organisation, to hold membership of a professional body or hold any other
qualification, it is your duty to ensure you are able to comply with the relevant obligation. You may be
requested to provide evidence of compliance to your line manager. Any duty to inform your professional
body of a matter which may impact on your registration or membership should be complied with and you
should also inform your line manager.
You must ensure that the relevant code of practice is followed during the course of your duties, this
includes formal reporting to the professional body on any matter where there is a duty to do so.

Page 38

BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL
Equality Impact Assessment – Part One - Screening
Part one of an EqIA – the screening – should be carried out at the planning and development stage of a policy, project,
service, contract or strategy. This form should be used in conjunction with the guidance and as the first part of a full
EqIA.
Name of policy, project,
service, contract or strategy
being assessed

Code of Conduct for Employees

Council wide

Page 39

Directorate and Service
Bryn Williams – HR Adviser
Names and roles of officers
completing the assessment

Main contact telephone number
23/03/18
Date

1

1. Identify the aims of the policy, project, service, contract or strategy and how it is implemented
Key Questions
1.1
1.2

Is this a new policy, project,
service, contract or strategy or a
review of an existing one?
What is the main purpose of the
policy, project, service, contract
or strategy?

Notes / Answers
Review of existing policy.
To define standards of conduct and
behaviours expected of all employees

Page 40

1.3

What are the main activities of
the policy, project, service,
contract or strategy?

1.4

Who are the main beneficiaries?
Whose needs is it designed to
meet?

All employees and the organisation

1.5

Which staff carry out the policy,
project, service, contract or
strategy?

All employees are bound by its

Are there areas of the policy or
function that could be governed
by an officer's judgement? eg.

Before any action were to be taken

1.6

provisions

against an employee for breach of the
2

Any actions needed?
By whom?

home visits "where appropriate".
If so, is there guidance on how to
exercise this to prevent any
possible bias/prejudice creeping
in?
1.7

Page 41

1.8

code a proper fact finding/investigation
process would have to be undertaken
and conclusions drawn, as it would for
all disciplinary processes.

Is the Council working in
N/A
Partnership with other
organisations to implement this
policy or function? Should this be
taken into consideration? eg.
Agree equalities monitoring
categories
Should the partnership
arrangements have an EqIA?
Taking the six strands of
equalities,
Applies equally to all employees.
do you have any initial thoughts
that any of the six equalities
strands have particular needs
relevant to the policy or function?
The recording of meetings where it is of
Or is there anything in the policy,
assistance to disabled employees is
project, service, contract or
referenced.
strategy that you can think of at
this stage that could discriminate
or disadvantage any groups of
Other than this there is no reason to
people? ie.
Gender
believe particular groups may be
Disability
3

Age
Race
Sexual Orientation
Transgender
Religion/Belief
Do any other specific groups
have particular needs relevant to
the policy, project, service,
contract or strategy?

1.9

Page 42

Did you use any data to inform
your initial thoughts above?
What data do you already have?

1.10 Are there gaps in the data that
require you to do further work?
What are these gaps?

discriminated against or disadvantaged.

N/A

N/A

If the result of the screening process is that there is the potential for a significant impact on any equality group or if any
equality group has significantly different needs, then a full equality impact assessment must be carried out. If you are
unsure please seek advice from a directorate or corporate equalities officer.
4

Signed
Service Manager
Date

Signed
Directorate Equalities Adviser/Officer or Equalities Contact
Date

Page 43
5

Agenda Item 10

HR Committee
26th April 2017
Report of:

Interim Director: HR, ICT & Change

Title:

The Council’s Pay Policy Statement for 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report:

Mark Williams (Head of HR)

Contact Telephone Number:

(0117) 92 22000

Recommendation
That the Committee recommends the amended Pay Policy Statement to the full Council.
Summary
The Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to agree and publish a pay policy statement annually
before the start of the financial year to which the statement relates. Any amendments must also be
approved by the full Council.
The significant issues in the report are:
- There are no material changes to the Pay Policy Statement; it has been updated to reflect the new
management structure only.

Page 44

Policy
1.

The Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities (the Full Council) to agree and publish a pay
policy statement annually before the start of the financial year to which the statement relates. It
is recommended to the Full Council by the HR Committee.

2.

Any amendments to the pay policy statement are also recommended by the HR Committee for
approval by the Full Council.

Consultation
3.

Internal
None required as no material changes are proposed.

4.

External
None required.

Context
5.

The Pay Policy Statement explains the Council pay policies for its highest and lowest-paid
employees. It is written and published in line with the Localism Act 2011 and guidance issued by
the Secretary of State.

Proposal
6.

That the Committee recommends the amended Pay Policy Statement to the full Council.

Other Options Considered
7.

None.

Risk Assessment
8.

None.

Public Sector Equality Duties
9a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

Page 45

-

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
9b)

An Equality Impact Assessment has not been completed because no material changes are
proposed.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
“This report fulfils the legal requirement placed on the Council by s.38(1) of the Localism Act 2011
to produce an annual pay policy statement.”
Advice provided by Husinara Jones (Lawyer), 10th April 2018
Financial
(a) Revenue
“No financial comment”
(b) Capital
“None”
Advice provided by Kevin Lock (Finance Manager), 9th April 2018
Land
Not applicable.
Personnel
“There are no implications. The changes set out in the policy just reflect the changes made to the
senior management structure following consultation.”
Advice provided by Mark Williams (Head of HR), 9th April 2018
Appendices:
A – Draft amended Pay Policy Statement
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None.

Page 46

Bristol City Council
Pay Policy Statement
for the period
1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019
1. Introduction
a.

It is essential that the Council attracts and keeps people with the right talents and
commitment to lead and deliver great services to Bristol’s citizens. At the same time the
Council has to get the best value for the taxpayer.

b.

This Statement explains the Council pay policies for its highest and lowest-paid employees. It
is written and published in line with the Localism Act 2011 (the Act) and guidance issued by
the Secretary of State (the Guidance). It was approved by full Council on [date to be
confirmed].

c.

The Guidance is clear that decisions on pay policies should be made by councillors. The
Council is committed to making sure that all councillors have a say on how pay decisions are
made, especially about its highest-paid employees. To achieve this, the Statement is reviewed
every year. The Mayor is consulted, and any proposals made are taken into account. The draft
statement is considered by the Human Resources Committee and finally by full Council. Both
meetings are open to the public.

d.

In line with the law (the Local Authorities (Elected Mayor and Mayor's Assistant) (England)
Regulations 2002), the pay of the Mayor’s Assistant is set as the Mayor thinks fit, within the
financial resources available to the Council. The Mayor’s Assistant is currently paid at Director
(Level 1).

e.

As recommended by the Guidance, this Statement sets out clearly and separately its policies
on each of the requirements listed in the relevant sections of the Act. The Guidance says that
this is to help enable taxpayers to decide whether they are getting value for money in the
way that public money is spent on local authority pay and reward.

f.

The Council is committed to equal pay for all its employees and to removing any bias in its
pay systems related to age, disability, gender, race, religion or belief or on the grounds of
being bisexual, gay, lesbian or transgender. Equal pay applies to all contractual terms and
conditions as well as pay.

g.

The Council aspires to be a Living Wage Employer, as accredited by the Living Wage
Foundation. The Council has paid its own employees no less than the Foundation Living
Wage since 1st October 2014.

Page 1 of 4

Page 47

2. Development priority for 2017/19
a.

The Council will work to reform its pay structure with the intention of implementing changes
by 1st April 2019. The new pay structure will take the Foundation Living Wage as its starting
point and will replace Bristol Grades 1 to 15. Proposals will be subject to equality impact
assessment and will be negotiated with the trade unions.

3. Pay of the Council’s highest-paid employees
a.

The Council’s highest-paid employees are Executive Directors and Directors. These roles are
graded using the Hay methodology and the salaries are informed by market (Public Sector &
Not-For-Profit and Industrial & Service) data supplied by Korn Ferry Hay Group. For the
period covered by this Statement the salary for Executive Director roles will range from
£135,000 to £165,000 with a mid-point of £150,000. The salary for Director (Level 2) roles will
range from £94,000 to £120,000 with a mid-point of £107,000. The salary for Director (Level
1) roles will range from £85,000 to £105,000 with a mid-point of £95,000.

4. Pay of the Council’s lowest-paid employees
a.

The Council’s lowest-paid employees are those who are paid the Foundation Living Wage.
The Council has adopted this definition because it has decided that none of its employees
should be paid less than the Foundation Living Wage. The Foundation Living Wage is £8.75
per hour with effect from 1st April 2018, which equates to a minimum salary of £16,882
(based on a full-time week of 37 hours). The rate of the Foundation Living Wage is refreshed
each November, and the Council applies the new rate from the following 1st April.

b.

Apprentices in their first year are paid £5 per hour. Apprentices in their second year are paid
£5 per hour until they are 18 years old and then at the National Living Wage for their age.
Apprentices in their third year are paid the Foundation Living Wage. An additional allowance
of £25 per week is paid to apprentices who have left local authority care, and this is paid
throughout their apprenticeship for as long as they live in independent accommodation.

c.

Interns, student placements and trainees are normally paid the Foundation Living Wage.

5. Relationship between the pay of the Council’s highest and lowest-paid employees
a.

Will Hutton’s 2011 Review of Fair Pay in the Public Sector recommended that all public
service organisations publish their top to median pay ratio to allow the public to hold them
to account. The Government’s terms of reference for the Hutton review suggested that no
public sector manager should earn more than 20 times the lowest paid person in the
organisation.

Page 2 of 4

Page 48

b.

The change in these ratios at the Council over recent years is shown in the following table:
Date
March 2012
st
31 March 2013
31st March 2014
31st March 2015
31st December 2015
31st December 2016
31st December 2017
31st

c.

Top to median pay ratio
6.68:1
6.29:1
6.75:1
6.23:1
5.24:1

Top to lowest salary ratio
15.6:1
12.35:1
12.87:1
11.85:1
11.33:1
10.05:1
8.34:1

For the period covered by this Statement the Council’s top earner will be on a salary of up to
£165,000 and the lowest-paid person will be on a salary of at least £16,882. This means that
the Council’s top to lowest salary ratio is 9.77:1.

6. Pay of Executive Directors and Directors when they start
a.

Pay will be within 10% of the minimum of the range unless otherwise agreed by the Human
Resources Committee. Payment above the mid-point is reserved for roles where there is clear
evidence that the market rate is significantly higher than the mid-point.

b.

The Guidance says that full Council should have the opportunity to vote before salary
packages totalling £100,000 or more are offered for new appointments. Through its
Constitution full Council delegates this to the Human Resources Committee.

7. Increases and additions to pay for Executive Directors and Directors
a.

The pay of Executive Directors and Directors will be reviewed each year through this Pay
Policy Statement. The Council will be mindful of pay awards agreed by the Joint Negotiating
Committee for Chief Executives of Local Authorities and the Joint Negotiating Committee for
Chief Officers of Local Authorities. There will be no change to the ranges quoted in
paragraph 3b above before 1st April 2019.

8. Performance-related pay for Executive Directors and Directors
a.

There is no performance-related pay for Executive Directors and Directors.

9. Bonuses for Executive Directors and Directors
a.

There are no bonuses for Executive Directors and Directors.

10. Pay of Executive Directors and Directors when they leave
a.

When an Executive Director or Director leaves they will be paid in line with what they are
entitled to under their contract of employment (their notice period is three months) and the
Council’s policies.

Page 3 of 4

Page 49

b.

The Guidance says that full Council should have the opportunity to vote before severance
packages costing £100,000 or more are paid to employees leaving the Council. The
Government intends to go further than this and cap the cost of an employee leaving a job in
the public sector at £95,000. The Council is advised that this is likely to be implemented at
some point in 2018. Councils may be given the authority to approve severance packages that
cost more than £95,000 by a vote of full Council, but guidance on this has not yet been
published. Until this change happens, the Council’s current policy will continue, which is that
the dismissal and/or compensation for loss of office of Executive Directors and Directors is
determined by the Human Resources Committee (except for the Head of Paid Service, Chief
Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer, where this is a matter for full Council).

c.

The Government also intends to change the law so that someone who takes a severance
package in the public sector can only work in the public sector again in the following 12
months if they pay back part of their severance payment. The Council is advised that this is
also likely to be implemented at some point in 2018. Until this change happens the Council’s
current policy will continue, which is that employees who leave due to voluntary severance
will not be re-employed by the Council in a paid job or engaged directly or through a
company on an “off-payroll” basis for 12 months after they leave. (Off-payroll means a
person who is paid via a company rather than through the payroll as an employee).
Employees who leave due to compulsory redundancy are free to apply for re-employment
with the Council at any point after they’ve left.

11. Paying Executive Directors and Directors “off-payroll”
a.

In line with IR35 the Council deducts and pays income tax and National Insurance
contributions to HMRC in respect of payments made on or after 6th April 2017 to people
engaged through personal service companies.

12. Returning Officer fees
a. The Council’s Returning Officer for elections and referenda is appointed by full Council. Fees
are paid for these duties. They vary depending on the type of poll and are published prior to
each election. Fees for most polls (including national elections and referenda) are set and
paid by the Government (rather than the Council).
13. More information about the pay of Executive Director and Directors
a.

The Council is committed to being open about its policies on pay. Approved pay policy
statements are published on the Council’s website at www.bristol.gov.uk/council-spendingperformance/senior-officers-pay. Other information that the Council has to publish under the
Local Government Transparency Code 2015 is available via that webpage.

Page 4 of 4

Page 50

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 56

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 68

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 115

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 119

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 123

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 126

